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Notice is hereby given that the Annual G_eneral N{eeting of shareholders of Bunny,s Limitecl (he
"Company") will be.held on Wednesday, 28 Novernber zbtt at 12:00 pM, at 105iA, euaid-e-Azarn.Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore to ffansact the foilowing ordinary Business:

1' To receive. consider and adopt the Chairman's Review Report, the Reports of Directors and
Auditors together with Audited Annual Financial Statements foithe year endea 30 June 201g.2. To approve. as recomlnendeci by the Board of Directors, the pa5rment of final cash dividend of Re.
1 .00 per share (i.e., @10.0%) for the year ended 30 June 201g.

3' To appoint Company's auditors and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby notified that
the Audit Committee and the Board of directors have recommended the name of reiiring auditors
Mr's Aslam Ivlalik & Co., Chartered Accountants for appointment as auditors of the Company

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Muhammad Shafique

Company Secretary
Lahore: 07 November. 2018

f{otes:

t. Book Closure: '

The Share Transfer 
-Bo9ks 

of the Company will remain closed from November 21, 20lg to
November 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at M/s F.D. Registrar Services (SIyIC-
Pvt) Ltd., the Company's Share Registrar and Transfer Agent's Office at Office * tlOS, l-ir,ipioo.,
Saima Trade Tower-A, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi at ihe close of business hours on Novem,oer
21, 201823, will be treated in time for the purposes of entitlement of final cash dividend and to
attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting (AGM).

A member entitied to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy
to attend and vote instead of hirn/her and a proxy .o uppoirt.a suatt have such rights, as respects
attending, speaking and voting at the Annual General Meeting as are available to the tr4ember. A
Proxy must be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing- a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed or a notarial attested copy of the pow"" of attorney must be deposited at ttre Re;ister.ed office
of the Company at least 48 hours belbre the time of the meeting. nroiy Forms, in rnlhsti and Urdu
languages, have been dispatched to the members along with the-notice of AGM 

j

N{ernbers who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of pakistan Limited("CDC") will further ha','e to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of pakistan.

)

3.

4.
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A. For Attending the Meeting

a. In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder and their registration
details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate hisiher identity by
showing his/her original CNIC or, original Passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

b. In case of corporate entity, the Board's resolution'power of attorney rvith specimen signature
of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

a. In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder and their registration
details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit tlie proxy form as per above
requirements.

b. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

d. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.
e. In case of corporate entity, the Board's resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature

shall be furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

5. CNIC/IBAN for E-Dividend Payment
The provisions of Section242 of the Companies Act,2017 require the listed companies that any
dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank
account oi designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the shareholders holding
physical shares are requested to provide the Company's Share Registrar at the address given
herein above, electronic dividend mandate on E-Dividend Form provided in the annuai report and
also available on w'ebsite of the Company. In the case of shares held in CDC, the same' 
information should be provided to the CDS participants for updating and forwarding to the
Company. In case of non-submission, all future dividend payments may be withheld.

6. Za,kztDeclarations:
The members of the Company are requited to submit Declaration for Zakat exemption in terms of
Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, I 980

7. Tax Deductions from Filers and Non-Filers
The deduction of income tax from dividend payments shall be made on the basis of filers and
non-filers as follows:

c.

S.No Nature of Shareholders Rate of deduction
i Filers ts.a%
2 Non- Filers 24.0%

49th Annual Report 2017-2018 tr



ry\
mBHII|,[f,J!:H'L,M''ED

Tax deduction will be made on the basis of Active Tax Payers List provided on the website of
Federal Board of Revenue.

Members seeking exemption from deduction of tax on dividend payment or are eligible for
deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary
documentary evidence, as the case may be.

The shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with
separately and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer or
a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his shareholding. If the share is not
ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the
deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate,
the joint account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the
Share Registrar of the Company latest by the AGM date.

Folio/CDC
Account No.

Name of
Shareholder

CNIC Shareholding Total Shares PrincipaVJoint
Shareholder

8. Unclaimed Dividend and Bonus Shares
Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did not
coliect their physical shares, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar to collect/enquire
about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

Video Confgrence Facility
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a city and
holding at least 10ok of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the
facility of video-link for participating in the AGM. The demand for video-link facility shall be
received by the Share Registrar at the address given hereinabove at least ten (10) days prior to the
date of the meeting on the Standard Form provided in the annual report and also available sn the
company's rvebsite.

Placement of Financial Statements .

The Company has placed a copy of the Notice of AGM and Annual Financial Statements for the
year ended 30 June 2018 along with Auditors and Directors Reports thereon and Chairman's
Review on the website of the Cornpany: www.bunnys.com.pk

By order of the Board

Company Secretary
Registered Office:
1 05/A, Quaid-e-Azam, Industrial Estate,
Kot Lakhpat, Lahore

Dated: November 7 ,2018

9.

10.
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C hairman's Review Report

I am pleased to present this report to the members of Bunny's Limited with regard to the the overall
performance of the Board and the effectiveness of its role in achieving Compa-ny's objectives.
The Committees of the Board had performed their dutles and iesponsibilities carefully and
contributed to the governance structure of the Comoany as per the best practices in light bt tne
applicable legal framework. The Audit Committee has focused on controi of risks associated with
the food business. The Human Resource and Remuneratlon Committee has worked within the
realm of its term of reference and ensured that the HR policies including performance
management, HR staffing, compensation and benefits are market driven and are aiigned to the
company's performance, stakeholders'interests and the longterm success of the Com[any
The Company has developed a nrechanism for the evalultion of performance of the Board of
Directors and its Committees. During the year, a seif-evaluation was carried out, as required. The
purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overali performance and effeciiveness is
measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the
Company. For the financial year ended June 30, 2018, the Board's overill performance and
effectiveness has been assessed as satisfactory. This assebsment is based on an evaluation of
various integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic
planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the organization's busindsJ activities; moniio,
financial resource management; effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees
and efficiency in carrying out the Board's business.
On an overall basis, I believe that the strategic direction of the Company is clear and appropriate.
Further, the processes adopted in developing and reviewing the overall corporate strategy and
achievement of Companyls objectives are commendable and have helped tremendolity in
ensuring the smooth and efficient running of the company's business.
The Company is striving to further improve the working conditions of its employees to provide safe,
healthy and comfortable working environment.
The Company was merged with and into the Moonlite (Pak) Limited a listed company and
subsequent its named was changed to Bunny's Limited with the approval of the registrar, $fCp.
The Company is pursuing restoration of listed status and hope ihat soon the shares of the
Company will resume trading on the only stock exchange of Pakistan, the pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.
I wish to acknowledge the contributions of our employees, suppliers, customers, bankers and
other stakeholders for their confidence and support.
We look forward to the fiscal 201 9 with confidence and hope to meet the challenges ahead.

Yunus Shafiq Chaudhry
Chairman

48th Annual Report 2017-201e
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BUNNY'S LIMITED
DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dear Shareholders,

Inthe name ofALLAH the most gracious andmost merciful, yourDirectors arepleasedto present

Directors' Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,

2018.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial results ofthe Company for the year

201 8 2017

Sales 2,314,220,166 2,181 ,081,219

Gross profit 673,949,289 601,220,996

Operating expenses 455,5338s7 382,624,744

Operating profit 218,375A31 218,596,252

Financial charges 63,549,653 39,222,983

Other (loss) r'income 854,018

Profit before taxation 155,679,797 179,373,269

Taxation 17,515,682 42,089,279

Profit after taxation 138,164,115 137,283,990

Earning per share 2.69 2.67

During the year under review, sales increased by 6.10%. This led to an increase of 12.090/, in
gross margins, a 1 .l2olo decrease in operating profits and 13.2lo/o decrease in pre-tax prof,ts. The

d."r"*r. in pre-tax profits is mainly due to the merger expenses incurred during the year which
are of norr-recurring nature. The Company Management expect better operating results in the

ensuing years.

DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to propose a final dividend of Re. 1 per share for the year ended June 30,

2018 for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on November 28,
2018.

STATUTORYPAYMENTS

There is no outstanding statutory payment due on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges

except ofnormal androutine nature.

48th An n u al Re port 2017 -201 I z
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MERGER WITH MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED

During the year 2018, all the merger formalities and compliances have been completed and the

financial statements for the year 2018 represent the merged accounts of both the companies. The

name has been changed to Bunny's Limited and the registered office has also been shifted to
Lahore. The manufacturing facilities ofthe Company are also situated in Lahore.

These merge<l financial statements give much better breakup value for the previous shareholders

of Moonlite (Pak) Limited.

BUNNY'S LIMITED

Bunny's Limited is one of the leading companies in bakery industry in Pakistan. It was

established in 1984. The Company has well experienced leaders on the Board of Directors and

Management.

One of the key reasons behind the continued trust of some of the leading industry players is the

high-quality standard being followed at Bunny's,

Bunny's Limited was the first baking unit in Pakistan to get an ISO certification and is a member
of theAmerican Institute of Baking. Bunny's Limited has secured HACCP (HazardAnalysis and

Critical Control Point) certification for its snack foods division. Moreover, Bunny's Limited is
now also ISO 22000 -2005 certifled. This signifies the quality and standard associated with
Bunny's products.

List of certifications is as follows:

1. AIB International
2- TUVAustria - Food Safety System Cer1ificationZ2)O}
3. Punjab FoodAuthority
4. ManagementAssociation of Pakistan
5. Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority

The Company Management is very hopefui that this merger will allow the Company to expand
and give a better return to its stakeholders.

BOARD OFDIRECTORS

Total Number of Directors :

Male: 06

Female: 02

Composition of Directors :

Independent:
Non-Executive:
Executive:
Nominee:

01

03

02

02

48th Annual Report 201 7-201 I r
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Name
Mr. Muhammad Raf, Uz Zaman Awan lndependent Director
Mr. Yunus Chaudhr r(*- r*". ri ru" n i r".t*- c-n i i r"n -*
Mrs. Saadia Omer Non-Executive Director
Miss Mahnoor Chaudh Non-Executive Director
N'l1|letqels l, a fi q qEqll'jy
Mr. Omer Shafiq Chaudhrv

Chief Executive
Executive Director
Nominee Director

Mr. Rehan fvlobin Neurryeeqrrler,- 
--- --,-,- -.1

REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE DIRECTORS
The policy on the remuneration of non-executive director will be framed in the upcoming board
meeting. For information on rernuneration of directors. please refer note to the financial
statements.

EXPANSION AND MODERFIIZ,ATION TROJECTS

The Company is in a continuous process to replace its old plant with latest and new technology
and has spent a significant amount on major capital projects and on sustenance to ensure its
efficiency and integrity of assets rvhich will benefit your Company anci its stakeholders in long
term.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIE S

Given the structure of <ieman,C for tbod items. the furure for bakery anr.l associatecl products
appears to hold consideral'rle proiaise. Fopulation grorvth, urbanizaticn, altering tastes and
preferences and rising incornes pro.,,ide producers with the iflceiltive to deliver high quality
goods. Bakery items such as bread. buns, rusks and naans are ccnsidq:r*d to be semi-staple food
and therefore, enjoy relativel.r ineiastic demand. Moreover, moving iroin Urban to Rural areas
there is a significant difference in eating and consumption patterns with more local goods being
preferred in the rural areas.

Going forw,arci, the aJompair-v is expected to continue rvith consistent grou'th trend except for one
off capacity enhanceinent wherein the sales rvi1l iikeiy jump up by 20-307; on completion.

OUR PEOPT,E AND TRAINII{G

The Campany believes til;:t cur ernployecs arc most valuable asset -who mobilize all resources of
the Company. We prefer to hire young and motivated professional people u,ho give nerv ideas.
The Llompany remains ccmn:itted to investing in human capital and encourages employees to
attend training session/ semina:'s i w-clrkshcps I development courses to keep themselves fully
a\,\'are with up to date knc.;rledge and skills tbr creating and sustaining a culture of high
performance.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no relatedparty transaction during the year.

AUDITORS
The present auditors Mi-s Aslam lv{alik & Co.. Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible
offers themselves for re-appointrnent The Board has received recommendations from its Audit
Committee forre-appointment of NIlsAslam lVlalik & Co., CharteredAccountants asAuditors of
theCompany.

Mr. Syed Muhammad Adnan Raza Naqvi

48th Annual Repcrt 2A17-2018 tr
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COMMITTEES OFTHE BOARI)
1. The Board has formed committees comprising members given below:

I. AuditCommittee:
i. Mr. Muhamma dRafi.Uz ZamauAr,van - Chairman
ii. Mr. Yunus ShafiqChaudhry
iii. Mrs. SaadiaOmer

II. HR and Remuneration Committee:
i. Mr. MuhammadRafirJzZamanAwan - Chairman
ii. Mr.Yunus Shaflq Chaudhry
iii. Mr. Haroon ShafiqChaudhrY

The terms of reference <lf the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised

to the committee forcompliance.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAT REPGRTING FRANIEWORK

The Directors of the Company are pleased to confirm thai the Company has made compliance of
the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and there is no material departure

from the best practices as detailed in the listing regulations. Our statements on corporate and

financialreporting are as follows:

The s-vstem of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented. The

system is continuously monitored by Intemal Audit and through other such monitoring
procedures. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with
ihe objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system. The Audit
Committee regularly review the Internal Audit Report and the system of internal controls.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company understands its corporate responsibilit5, towards society and fulfills its obligation
by providing financial support to under privileged members of the society and its desewing
employees as well as doing philanthropy work. The Company is also contributing considerable

amounts to the National Exchequer, applying solutions for energy conservation and environment
protection, providing the highest quality products to its valued customers.

lbur Cornpany regularly donates amounts to hospitals, trusts and to various institutions
constituted for dealing with natural calamities as part of its-philanthropie activities. Your
Company also provide its products at subsidizedrateto hospitals like Ghulab Devi Hospital. Your
Company is providing healthy, safe and learning work environment to its employees and sends

them on training courses, seminars, workshops and conferences both wi(hin country and abroad.

It lends regular support to the special persons by offering thern jobs in various departments ofthe
organization. It also offers apprenticeship to fresh graduates, post graduates and engineers, on a

regular basis, to elevate their professionai and technical skills'

48th Annual Report 2017-2018 @
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Your Company has also installed an enviror*.r,rtly friendly gas-based power plant rvith a view
to reducepowef cost.

D_uring the year, your Company has contributed a huge amount to the National Exchequer by way
ofpayment ofvarious duties, levies andtaxes.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME
The company is in the process ofdevising employee stock option schemes

PATTE RN OF SHAREHOLDI NG

Pattern of shareholding is attached at the end ofthe financial statements.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
There have been no material changes since June 30,2018 to the date of this report and the
company has not entered into any commitment during this period, which would havi an adverse
impact on the financial position ofthe company.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
The Directors of your Company fully en<lorse the Chairman's Review report on the performance
ofthe Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Directors are grateful to the Company's shareholders, financial institutions and customers for
their continued cooperation, support and patronage which has enabled the Company to continue
its efforts for constant improvement. The Directors acknowledge the dedicated service, loyalty
and hard work of ali the emplo3'ces of the Company and hope this spirit of devotion rvill continue.

Lahore: November 06, 2018 CHAIRMAN
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Statement of Compliancglvith the tisted Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2817

Name of Company

Year ending

Bunny's Limited
June 30,2018

Bunny's Limited (the "Compan/') has compiied with the requirement of the Regulations in the
following manner:

1. The total nurnber of directors are 08 as per the following:

Male 06
Fernale 02

2. The composition of the board is as fcillows:

a.

b.

a. Independent Directors
b. Other Non-Executive l)irectors
c. Executive Directors
d. Nominee I)irectors

: N4rs. Saadia Omer

i ivtlss tvtatrnoor Ciru"At w

01

03

a2
02

Name
Mr. Muhammad Rafi UzZamanArvan
Mr. Yunus Chaud

Non-Executive f)irector
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Haroon Shafiq Cha

Mr. Omer Shafiq C
Mr. Syed Muhammad Adnan Raza Norninee Director

i Mr. Rehan Mobin Nominee Director

3. The directors have confitmed that none of thern is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this Compan-v (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding
companies where applicable).

1. The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it thloughout the Company aiong with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5" The board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significani policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

Non-Executive Director - Chaiiman

Chief Executire
Executir.e Director

48th Annual Report 2017-2A18 v
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6. All the powers of the board have been Orty 
"r.r.l1ed 

a1d decisions on relevant matters have

been taken by the board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and

these regulations.

7 . The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in her absence, by a director

elected bV th. board for this purpose. The board complied with requirements of the Act and the

Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of

board.

g. The board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of

directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

g. Al1 of the new directors appointed during the current financial year will duly comply with the

requirement of Listed itmpanies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

with respect of Directors' Training Program'

10. The Board has approved appointment of cFo, company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,

including their iemuneration and terms and conditions of appointment and complied with

relevant requirements of the Regulations'

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising members given below:

I. Audit Committee:

i. Mr. Muhammad Rafi Uz ZartanAwan - Chairman

ii. Mr. Yunus Shafiq Chaudhry

iii. Mrs. Saadia Omer

II. HR and Remuneration Committee:

i. Mr. Muhammad Rafi Uz ZamanAwan - Chairman

ii. Mr. Yunus Shafiq Chaudhry

iii. Mr. Haroon Shafiq ChaudhrY

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised

to the committee for comPliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yeatlyl yearly) of the committee were as pel

following:
a) Audit Committee NIL.
b) IIR and Remuneration Committee NIL

All of the directors are appointed during the year due to merger.of,the company. However, the

above committees will foilow the regulations regarding the convene of the meetings.
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LIMITED

The board has set up an effective internal audit function, which
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
Company.

is considered suitably qualified
policies and procedures of the

16. The statutoryauditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
ruting under the quality control review program of the ICAP, that they o, un! of the pu.t .r, of
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the iornpury and that the firrn
and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or uny ott er requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFACguidelines in ihis regard.

l8' The company secretary and chief financial officer are the same persons; however, the company
will appoint different persons for these positions

19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

FoT BUNNY,S LIMITED

Chainnan
Lahore : November 06, 2018

48th Annual Report 2017-2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Bunny's Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Cornpliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compiiance i,r,itli the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Goventance) Reg-trtratioirs" 201 7 (the Reguiations)
prepared by the Board of I)irectors of Bunn--v's l-imited fcr the year cnded 30

June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations

The responsibilit-v flor cornpliairce with the Regulations is tliat of the Boarcl of
Directors of the Company. Our respcnsibility is io revierv v;hether the Statenient

of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions
of the Regulations anrl repoil if it does not anci to highlight anv iron-complianes
with the requirements of the Regulations. A i'cvier,, is limited primarily to
inquiries of the Cr:mpany's f,)ersr-rnrlel and reviru, of various documents prepared
by the Compan.v.- to ccmply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of the linancial statenlents we are required to obtain an

understanding of the acconnting and inteniai control systems sufficient to plan the

audit and develop an effective audit approacli. W-e are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors' statement ol1 iuternal control covers all risks and

controis or to form an opinion on the ellbctiveness of such internal controls, the

Company's corporate governance procedures anrl risks.

The Regulations require the Company to plaee before the Audit Conunittee, and

upon recommendation of the Auriit Committee. piace before the Board of
Directors for their review and approvai, its relateel party transactions and also

ensure compliance r.vith the requirements of section 208 of ihe Companies Act"
2017. We are onl.v required anri have ensured compliance of this requiremcnt to

48th Annual Report 2017-2018 E
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the ertent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Di:e.-lors upon recommendation of the Audit Conrmittee. We have not caried
trtru-edures to access and determine the. Company's process for identification of
ieiated parties and that whether the relaied party transactions v/ere undertaken at
lrm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company,s
compiiance, in all material respects, with the riquirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the company for the yeai ended 30 June 201g.

Fufiher, we highlight below instances of noncompliance rvith the reqnirements of
the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference w-here it is stated in the
statement of compliance :

Descriptian
No meetings of Audit CommitG-e and
HR Committee r,vere held ,Juring the

r.
Company seJre?ary- i-rlC -ilrier
financial officer are the same person

Place: Lahore
Date: November 06, 2018

(Aslam Malik & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
Mohammad Aslam Malik

Paragraph Reference

48th Annual Report 2A17-201A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF BUNNY'S LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements ofBUNNY'SLIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018,
and the statement of profit or loss and the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information ancl according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes fonning parl thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the infbrrnation required by
the Companies Act. 201 7 (XtX of 201 7). in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair vierv of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30,2018 and
of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance r,vith lnterlational Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. C)ur responsibilities under those standards are
fuither described in the Auditor's Respottsibilities Jbr the Audit oJ'the Finttncial
Statements section of our report. We are indepenclent of the Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board fbr Accountants' Code o-fEthics -for
Professional Accctuntantsas adopteel by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and w'e have fulfiilecl our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fbr our opinion.

48th Annual Report 2017-2018 w
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are thosematters that, in our professional judgment, were of mostsignificance in our audit of the financial stateinents of the- cu"rrent period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

S. No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in
our audit

I New Requirement under
I Companies Act, 2017:
I

llRefer note3.4 ro the financial

I 
statements)

I

j The provisions of the fourth
I schcdule to the Companies Act,
| 2017 (the Act) became applicable
I to the Company for the firiitime in
j the preparation of these annexed

| 
financial statements.

I

I The Act, has also brought certain

I changes with regirds to
I preparation and presentation of the
I annual financial statements of the
I Company.
I

I ar purt of this transition to the
I requirements, the management

I performed a gap analysis to
I identifu differences, berween the
I previous and the current financial
I reporting framework and as a

I result certain changes were made
in the Company's annexed
financial statements.

In view of the extensive impacts in
the annexed financial statements
due to first time application of the
fourth schedule to the Act, we
considered it as a key audit matter.

We reviewed and understood the
requirements of the Fourth schedule
to the Act. Our audit procedures
included the following:
i. Considered the management's

process to identify the additional
disclosures required. in the
Company's annexed financial
statements.

ii. Obtained relevant underlying
supports for the additional
disclosures and assessed their
appropriateness for the sufficient
audit evidence.

iii Verified on test basis the
supporting evidence for the
additional disclosure and ensured
appropriateness of the
disclosures made.

48th Annual Report 201 7-201 I
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I BUSINESS COI\TBINATION

(Refer note2.l to the financial
statements)

A scheme of arraugentent was filecl in
the Honourable Lahore High Court,
whereby the enrire undertaking of
Bunny's Limited including proFerty.
assets, liabilities arrd its rights and
obligations have been merged inlo and
vested in Moonlite (PAK) Limited
("the Legal Acquirer or "the Economic
Acquiree").

In consideration for the rnerger, the
Moonlite (PAK) I-imited has to issue
and allot 49.229,A83 'futly paid
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to the
registered holders of ordinary shares
of Bunny's Limited in the ratio of I
ordinary shre of the Legal Acquirer
for I ordinary sharc of Legal

'Acquiree.

The scheme of arrengement was
earliei approveil lry the sirareh*iders of
botli Mc'oi:iite (PAK) Llmited antl
Elunnfs Lir:ited tn their Exiraordinary
Generai Mee'iin-e heid oir .fune i4,
2016 ai.rd .Tri:-re tr 8. 20 1 6 re spectivei-v.

Summarizing, under this scheme of
arangeme!'ll, thr-' e.".isting business of
manufaciiiring oi bakery and oilrer
food products sliall be carried on by
the merged cornDany under the name
and st1,le of Bunnv's Limited.

The scherne lias been approved by the
Honoura"hle L.ahore High Court and
merger has been sanctioned effectively
from Julv 01. 2015.

.\ccording!'.",', li:c conrparativc amounts
have been restated ir.l give alfect that
the company was merged u,ith et'fect
irorn July 01, 2015.

Our audit procedures to assess the
scheme of arrangement/ merger,
amongst others, inciuded the following

We obtained and rer"iew the:

1. Scheme of arrangement {illed by
the Company to the Honourable
Lahore High Court.

2. Copy of Form 3 issued by
Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan for
issuance of shares oi4q.229.083.

3. Copy of BOI) Minutes of Meetlng
for the issuance of shares and
aliotrrent af 49,229.083 fuily paid
ordinary shares of Rs. i0 each to
the registc'red hoiders of ordirary
shares rrf' Bunny's Lirnited in ,,he

ratio of i orilinary share of the
Legal r\cquii'*i fi:r I ordinary share
of Legal Auqairee.

4. Copy' of minutes cf meeting of
shareholders of both Moorriire
(PAK) Limiteci and Br.rnnls
l-irnited in their Extracrdinary
General Meeting held on June 14,
2016 and June 18, 

. 
201,6

respectively.

5. Copy of Honourable Lahore Fligh
Court Order stating that the existing
business of manufacturing of
bakery and other food products
shall be carried on by the merged
company under the name and style
of Bunny's Limited and the scheme
ha.s been approved by the
Honourable Lahore High Court ahd
merger has been sanctioned
effectively from July 01, 2015.

48th Annual Report 2A17-2Ai I ---E
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In view of the extensive impacts in
the annexed financial statemepts
we considered it as a key audit
matter.

3 ACCOUNTING TREATMENT,
REPORTING OF MERGER AND
GOODWILI.

(Refer note2.2 and 2.3 to the
financial statements)

In accordance with the stipulation
contained in IFRS 3, Business
Combinations, the merger has been
identified and recognized in these

financial statements as a transaction of
'reverse acquisition'. Bunny's Limited,
as it existed just before the merger,
constitutes substantial portion of the
merged company and treated as the
Accounting Acquirer whereas
Moonlite (Pakistan) Limited as been
considered as Accounting Acquiree.

In post acquisition scenario Bunny's
Limited, as it existed before
acquisition, has incorporated balances
relating to the Moonlite (PAK)
Limited as per the audited financial
statements as on June 30, 2015. The
fair values and the carrying values of
net assets of Moonlite (PAK) Limited
deemed to be equal- and therefore, no

adjustments have been made. The
goodwill arising from merger is Rs
76,672,382

In view of the extensive impacts in
the annexed financial statemepts
we considered it as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures to assess

recognition of Goodwill and
impairment testing by management
Bunny's, amongst others, included
following

We obtained and reviewed the
calculation of fair value of shares of the
company by the Independent firm of
Chartered Accountants.

We recalculated the calculation of
Goodwill in light of IFRS 3.

Ensure the appropriateness of
disclosure in accordance with the IFRS
J

Obtained Impairment test document
from management.

the

its
of

the

48th Annual Report 201 7-201 I E
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Information Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other infbrmation. The other information comprises the

information included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 20 18'

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon'

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is rrraterially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, on

other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other infonnation. we are required to repoft that fact. We have

nothing to rePort in this regard.

Responsitrilities of Nlanagement and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in accoidance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,2017(XIX of 2Ol7) and for such

internal control u, *urug"ment deter-mines is necessary to enable _the 
preparation of

financial statements that"are free frorn material misstatement. r.vhether due to tiaud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements" rlanagement is responsible for assessing the

Comparry'r"uUltity to continue as a golng concerri, disclosing, as-applicable, matters

ietateO to going 
-.or."* 

and using the going concefil basis of accounting unless

management eit'her intends to liquidate ihe Company or to cease operations, or has

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsibie for overseeing the Company's financiai reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about w'hether the financial staternents as a

whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to frar,rd or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of asstlrance.

but is not a guarantee that ur'r u.,.lit conducted in accordance u'ith ISAs as applic able in
pakistan will always detect a material rnisstatement when it exists. N{isstatements can arise

from traud or erroian{ are considered material if. individualiy or in the aggregate, the,v could

reasonably be expectetl to influence the economic ciecisions of users taken on the basis cf
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we cxercisc

prof:essional judgment and maintain professional skepticism thror,rglroul the audit. We aiso:

o Identify and assess the risks ol rnaterial misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and petform audit procedures resl-ronsive to
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those risks' and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to.provide abasis for our opinion' The risk of 
1o., 

o",""tirrg? rrateriat -i.ri"t"ii",rt iesulting fromfraud is higher than for one resulting no*-"oo;, as fraud may involve collusion,forgery' intentional omissions" ,rrir."pi."n,rii"".l'". thc override of internal control.
o obtain an understanding of internal controi relevant to the audit in order to designaudit procedures that ut" upp.opriate in trr" 

"ir.rr*tances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectivenesr or trr" in*pany,s internal control.
o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates and rerared disclosurei ;;;;; rnanagement.
o conclude on the appropriateness-of management's use of tlie going conceffr basis ofaccounting and' based on the audit evideni" 

"Lili""a, whetheia ,rr-r,".rJ uncertaintyexists related to events or conditions that ;; cast significant doubt on theCompany,s ability ro continue * 
_, ;;6;;#;i. If we cc,nctude rhat a materialuncertainty- exists, we are required ,J ati*"rt"*ion i, our auditor,s report to therelated disclosures in the finan"iul ,tut"rrr"*. 

"r, 
ii.r"h disclosure. ur" rrruo.quate, tomodify our opinion' our conclusions u." uurJ'o, trr" uralt 

"rrla"nc"-obtained up tothe date of our auditor's report. However, rutrr" 
"rarrts 

or conditions may cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation. str-ucture and content of the financial statements,including the discloiures, anJ whetire. ,i,"* ilur"irr sratements represent theunderlying transactions and events in a manner t ui u"r-,i"u-"s fair presentation.
we communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the plannedscope and timing of the audit and significant ,rait"hrrJrrrgs, incruding any significantdeficiencies in inremal contror rhu;;; i"Jentify during _our auc,t.

we also provide the board of directors with a statement ,t ut *" have complied with relevant
;l}Th:".qffir?r"r"1;resardins 

independence, and t'communicate u,ith thern arl reLtionships
appricable, related Jil-ffL::asonably 

be thought to bear on ou, inaepenaenc",-ura wheie

From the matters communicated with the,board of.directors, we determine those matters thatwere of most significance in the audlt oiihe tourr.rritrtui"*",ts of the cur:rent p eriod and aretherefore the key audit matters. we o"r".it 
" 

these matters';';rr. audilor,s report unress lawor regulation precludes public disclosure about the *u*. or when, in extremery rarec*cumstances' we determine that a matter should 
"ot 

br;;;;unicated in our report because
lnffiH""rTTiffffiH*#"1so iluld 

'"u,o,uurv1"" "*p""t"o to outweigi the public

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
"' fll%?;?f;,} #;;Hi,*;" 

u"", t p, tv the co,,,puny as requirerr bythb companies

b) the statement of financial position, the^statement of profit or ross, the statement ofcomprehensive income, the statement of .rr""g"r'i, 
"irir, "*o the statement of cash

Annual 201 7-2A1 I
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flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the

compariies A{x, 2Al7 (XIX of 201 7) and are in agreement with the books of account and

returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were

for the purpose of theCompany's business; and

d) No zakat is deductible at source under the zakat and ushr ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of

l 980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is

Mohammad Aslam Malik.

l

Place: Lahore '

Date:November 06,2018

(Aslam Malik & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLTTE (PAK) LINTITED)

STATENIENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Restated
2Afi

Restated
2076

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Operating fixed assets

Capital u,ork in progress

Property, plant and equiPment

Intangible assets

Long tcrm investment

Ltrng tcrm sccuriry dePosits

Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock-in-trade
Trade debts - unsecured

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capiial and reserves

Authorized share caPitai

54,000,000 Ordinary shares ofRs.10/- each .

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Capital reserves

General reserves

Non-current liabilities
Long term finances - secured

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - secured

Long term advances - unsecured

Deferred liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Accmed mark-uP on secured loans

Short term borrowings
Current portion oflong term finances and.leases - secured

Provision for taxation - net

Contingencies and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

558.517,109 561,438,615

,J69210J3' 2J0Mr9-t1s

540,000,00t

513,886,690
45r,85A39i
441,01 I,57 t

540,000,000

1,416,748,658 1,281,109,802

201 I
Note

5. i 1.636,069,940

5.3 89,405r3rJ5

5 1,725,475,245

6 76,800.647
1,815,000

6.602. I J8

1,810,693,030

1,62A,722,042
?i IAR !q?

1"655Sr0r3,
"/6,832,7 t3

i ,815,00c

__:;22!68_
1,74tt,060,620

16,359,929
218,901,128
22t,4't4,634

87,635,566
17.067,358

1,610,393,279

1,610,393,279
76,872,796

1,8 i 5,000
5 5?1 668

1,694,603,743

2,2A8,720,514

s40.000.000

7

8

9

10

11

t2

15,273,221

241 ,75 1 ,1 80

2t1,27 6.255
85, 1 92,803

5,023,651

s 13,886,690

461.850,397
105,372,715

5 I 3,886,690
46i.850,397
268,43e,993

1,244,176,750

80,201,930
6,666.612

I 1,670,848

165,608,412

264,147,862

13

t4
15

16

tl
18

19

174,995,996
38,301,164
13,4 I 7,980

1 88,656,140
415,371,880

2,369,210,139

279,011,934
t4,846.421
I 3,005,138

i 89,426,208
496,349,701

347,787,248
2,476,058

94.224,958
61,1 18,479

18.432,988

524,039,731

48 r.408,896
3,t41,172

t50,2s6,944
53,4E5,708

t2,103,182
700,395,902

20

2.3$1,499,235 2,208,720.514

The annered notes from I to 39 form an integral part of these financial statemeots.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Olficer

u

13,998,945

2t0,111,449
202,198,271

84,391,452
2,816,655

514,116,772

28A,894,234

t0,729,96s
t62,207,541
82,595,279

662.582
537,089,601
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018

Restated

2017
Note

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Administrative and general

Selling and distribution

Operating prolit

Other operating expenses

Other incorre

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earning per share - basic & diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements'

2l

22

Rupees

2,314,220,166 2,18i,08'i,219

(t,640,310,811) (1,579,860,224)

673,909,289 601,220,996

23

24

162,578,508

281,918,391

(444"496,900)

122,890,472

246,330,108

(369,220,580)

229,412,389 232,A00,4i5

25

26

27

(11,036,9s8

854,018

(63,549,653

(73,732,593)

(i3,404,1-64

t39,222,-q83)

{52,627,147)

155,679,791

(17,5 15,68 1)

179,373,269

G2,A89,219)

138,164,115 137,283,990

2.6728 2.69

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITf,D)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIYE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Restated

2018 2017

Rupees

138,164,115 137,283,990Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Items that may not be subsequently reclassified to prffi or loss

Remeasurement of post employee benefit obligation

Impact of defened tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from I to 39 form an integral part ofthese financial statements'

Chief Executive Director

(3,459,250

934,000

(2,525,260)

(1,455,97

(436,793

(1,892,771)

135,638,855 135,391,218

Chief Financial Officer

48th Annual Report 201 7-201 I @
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED)

STATEN{ENT OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEABIN2E! JUNE

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from oPerations

Financial charges Paid

lncome lax Paid

Staffgratuiry Paid

Workirs' (profit) participation fund paid

Net increase in long ternt advances

Net increase in securitY dePosits

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FRONT INVESTTNG ACTIVTTIES

Sale proceeds from disposal of hxed assets

Fixed caPital exPenditure

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTTVITIES

Proceeds less repayment of long term loans

Proceeds less repayment of lease iiabilities

Net decrease in short term finances

Dividend Paid during the Year

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Net lncrease /(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofthe year 30

Tl-reannexednotesfromlto39formanintegalpartofthesefinanciaistatetnents..

29

2018

RuPees

240.546,994 136,150,831

t52,347,543
(7,925,5',71)

(6,250,645

(8,084,191)

t,334,290

(i i7,100,041) (,13,273,660)

723,446,953 62,877,171

1,000,000

04s,329,447)

555,281

(1 07,755,1 52)

{144,329,441) (107,199,871)

(102,079,782)

42,935,98'l

67,982,583

197,251,035

1 5,812,520

(56,031,986)

(98,4s8,166)

b,838,288 58,573,403

(12,043,101)

17,067,358

14,250,'103

2,816.655

5,023,651_ 17,067,358

ilnief Financial Officer
Director

Chief Executive

,,-iilffiat Report 2017-2018'

(73,589,568

(19.954,016)

( i 3,201 ,s46)

(9,688,283'

4t2,842
(1,07e,4

c
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED)

ffi;il ro rIrE FINAN.IAT 11111y*tt
io*irt ttn* t*""t*

I STATUS AND NATURE oF BUSINES 
^ -.-,-^-* ^r ,rr rrated in Pakistan as a

l.Tr"',,ffiit*i:g+***tiqiqiry:i$,t{#^{}f} ffi*f#if
was iater on converted

products. rh" ."gi.t"r.d "ir". ""a 
manufacturing facility of the company 1s srluat'u a' tvJt L I Y----'

Kot LakhPat' Lahore'

|.2Significant'TransactionsandEventsAffectingtheCompany,sFinancialPrrsitionandPerformance

Au significant events and transactions that have effecied the company's financial position and perf omance during the year have

been adequatel, o*,".ii.i, ""tes 
to these financial Statements and directors report.

2 BUSINESS COMBINATION

2.1 Legal Framework

A scheme of ar.rangement was filed in the Honorable Lahore Fligh court, whereby the entire undertaking of Bunny's Limited

including properry, u.sets, ,ut,iti.s a1d 
1s 

,nni' t"J 
"o'igations-have 

be"';;;;;; into *o vested in Moonlite (PAK) Limited

("the Legal 'a''qoi"' o'ltt'e Economic o'o.,t'llr'']" F **l;-"::l*f;:ru:i1H:li['f]I'"iil'[]lTtf;:i;
and allot On,"n'Of'fify'p"ia "'a-u1 *"tt.:-.of 

Os 10 each to the reglsti

ir,",utio or r o.ainu,vir,l,i or*,. t:g'o"oll::;iT ;:'l;::Ij,[::"i'"'#$:::iii.',no*, Lim*ed and Bunnv's Limited in

*HX,:I;TXXil';::"H[1;'# il:''i''ii' 
"' 

"'J "ne 
i 8' 20 1 6 respectivelv

Summarizingly, under this scheme of u.rur*.,,1*,"*e existing Ut"*""'oii"l'i"""ti* of bakerv and other food products

shall be carried on by rhe rnerged company -ro;;;;;-*" ancr*sty1e "r 
ur*1,:., i;*ited. The ..hr-" ha-q been approved by the

Honorable Lahore High couri and *.g., r.,u.-u.., .r"r.ri"".a !n.,,".,r"i"ri'6 or' 2015 Accordingly the comparative

amounts t1ur. U."o ..^r"trtJ,o gir. affect that ti"";;;;;;u' -"tg"t1 with etfect from July 0l ' 2015 '

;';::;.,j;:.:ilffi::TJ:::':::"*"9 ''l:l:..]' 
Business combination's' the merger has been identiried and recognized

in these financial *ur"*"ri.*ur^u trunru.tion "r,r.r"rJl.^o*ition'. 
Brnny', ii*'t"a' as it existed jusr hefore the merger'

constitutes substantiar portiorr of the rnerged_comp*";r;;;d as the o*""rii"r-o"quirer whereas Moonlite (Pakistan)

ilited as been consi<iered as Accountiug Acqurree'

;";:fff:.ffi::li":Hi:I:"';*:*,:*ted berore acquisition' has incorporated'oi'-*:':11"ng to the Moonrite

GAK) Limited as per rhe ,Jit.a',nr"r"iut .tut"."nt' u-J;t;"t :O' zor s The fair uul"t und the carrying values of net assets

of Moonlite GAr) 'imrte];;;;;;. 
equal andit'"',"to"' no adjustments';;;;;;;;"de' rhe calculation of goodrviil

arising from merger is detailed below: Juty 01, 2015

RuPees

,,

,1

71,309,530

Consideration effectively transferred

(2,159,586 x Rs' 33'02 / share)

Net assets as at the date of acquisition

*". .tr.r*, assets classified as held for sale

Advances deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Less:

Trade and other PaYables

I
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76.672,382

3

3.1

Goodwill

IFRS 3, Business cornbinations' requires that all identirred "::": !::YllYllf:rtff:::t'l':#':':t#;:'fi:ili:i'i;

:ffi*: 
.;t*t1*f:ffi#[T',i:i[';.8flfi#.[F:TtlX"Tl;; ;' ;;;ir'iair values IFRS 3-a11ows'lhe

economic acquirer a maxlmum period of one y"- rru* the'date oi acquisition a ir*ii," the determination of the fair values of

r;h*.,Tl#*:1s:ff::*".::'#::ff'll"tliil:j'H,'i:ffiil;.tTll,i1; 
,0. period speci,'led under IFRS . 3

However, management does rrot expect the fair vaiues oi,*r- urr"* and liabiiities iru*r"rr.o tc be materiarly diffsrent from the

carnying values.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

ill:oiff:,.]tl,T,iL*, riave been prepared under tire historicar cost con.,enrion except that the Companv's iiabilirv under

defined benefit plan ($atuity) is determined o, ,t 
" 

p..r.rr, uaiue of definer, t"rr.ni ourigutions as determined by an independent

actuary.

3.2 Statement of comPliance

:f"H:l,lilHH;. have been prepared l" i:::1li:T,);:::*:j::,::nting 
and reporting standards as applicabre in

;ffi1.:'i.',;:::#".,*;;.portirg srandarils applicable in Pakistan compnse:

International Financial Reporting Srandard itFRS) issued by the lntemational Accounting standards Board

under ihe ComPanies Act' 2017; a-nd

Provisions of and directives issued under t1-rc Companies Act' 2017'

$/here provisions of and r,irectives issued urr.der the companies Act, 20r7 differ fro*r the IFRS, the provisions of and directives

issued under the Companies Act' 2C17 have been tbllorn'ed

3,3 Atloption of New And Revised Standards And Interpretations

The fourth schedule to the Companies Act,2017 (the Act) beoarrre applicable to the Company for the first time for the

preparation of these nr--Jri statements. rrre lci'(inc"irrainf rt, lorrtr, ,.rr.a*r"j t",*s an integral part of the statutory financial

reporting framework applicable to the Compan, ffi;;G; oth"'' ptt"'it'es the nature and content of disclosures in relation

to ru.iou. elements of the financial statemefis'

.fhe Act has also brought ceftain changes, with regard to preparation aud presentation of annuai and interim financial statements

of rhe company. ThJse changes inctudc chanff';';;;;i;;;t" or p'i*o'y financial statements Further' the disclosure

requirements .orrtuirr.iin it. r"oo.tt schedule ,oih. Ar, have treen reYised' resulting in the:

-eliminationofduplicativedisclosureswiththeIFRSdisclcsurerequirements:an<i
-ir.oarorutio" of significant additional disclcsures'

Specific additional discrosures and changes to the existing discrosures as a result of this crringe are stated in notes 1 '2' 3 ' 5 '4'

S.r, q't, 27 '1,2'7 '2,33' 34 and 35'

The tblrowing are the standards, amendrnents. & interpretations which have been issued but are not yet effective ibr the current

financial year and have not been early adopted by the Company'

4sth Annual RePorrWtTzot u
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ElTective Date

(annuai rePorting Periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 19 Employee benefits (Amendments)

IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)

IAS 40 lnvestment Property (Amendments)

IFRS 2 Share-Lrased Pa5iment (Amendments)

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments)

IFRS 9 Financial Instntments

IFRS i5 Revenue from contracts rvith customers

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty Over Income Tax

Themanagementanticipatesthat,exceptasstatedbelow'adoptionofabovestandarcls,amendmentsandirrtelpretationsinf.rture

periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation / disclosures' The management is in

theprocessofassessingtheimpactofchangeslaiddownbytheIFRSg,l5andl6onitsfinancialstatements.

Further.thefoliowingnewstandardsandinterpretationshavebeenissuedbythelnternationalAccountingStandardsBoard
(IASB),whichareyettobenotifiedbytheSecuritiesandExchangeCommissionofPakistan(SECP),forthepurposeoftheir
applicabilitY in Pakistan:

IFRSlFirst-timeAdoptionoflntemationalFrnancialReportingStandards
IFRS 14 Regulatory Defenal Accounts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The following interpretations issued by the IASB have been waived off by SECP:

IFzuC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains lease

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

These flnancial statements are presented in pakistan Rupees which is Company's functional curency'

3'5 use of estimates and judgments 
rnting standards, as appricable in pakistan, requires

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accor

management to make judgrnents, estimates una ,.rrrmptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of

assets, liabilities' income and expenses'

Theestimatesandassociatedassumptionsarebasedonhistoricalexperienceandvariousotherfactorsthatarebelievedtobe
reasonable under the circumstances. the resurts or *rrr"t', form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of

assetsandliabilitiesthatarenotreadilyapparentffomothersources.Actualresultsmaydifferfromtheseestimates.

The estimates and underlying Jr.orrptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounttng estimates are recognized

in the period in wuJ the 
"r'ti-ut. 

is revised il the revision affecls only that period or in the period of the revision and future

pe.iodi ifthe revision affects'both current and future periods'

Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standdrds; as applicable in Pakistan' that have a

significant eftect on the financial statements and estimates with significant risi of material judgments ifr the next financial year

are set tbrth below:

Income taxes

Jamtary 01, 2019

January 01, 20i9
January 01,2018

January 01,2018

January 01,20i8
July01,2018
July 0i,20i8

January 01, 20i8
January 0i, 2018

January 0i, 2018
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4

4.1

In making ihe estimates for incorne taxes currently payable by the company, the management looks at the current income taxlaw and the decisions of appeliate authorities on cefiain filatters in the pasi.

Staff retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions ha-'re been adopteii as disclosed in these financial staiement-q fbr valuation of present value ofriefined benefit obiigations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in these assumptions in future years might affect ttre
current and remeasurement gains and losses in thcse years.

Trade debts and other receivables

The Company's management reviews its trade debtors on a continuous basis to identifiT receivables where collection of anamount is no longer probable. These estimates are based on historical experience and are sutrject to changes in conditions at thetime of actual recovery.

Property, plant and equipment

The company reviews the rates ofdepreciation, usefui lives, residual values and values ofassets for possible impairment on anannual basis' Any change in the estimaies in future years might affec the carrying amourts of the respective iterns of property,plant and equipment with a coresponding effect on the depreciation charge and inpainnent.

Stock-in-trade and stores and spares

The company reviews the net realizable value ofstock-in-trade and stores, spares parts and loose tools to assess any diminutionin their respective carrying values and also revie.lv the.inr.entories for obsolescence.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICA\T ACCOTTNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation thereon except freehoid iand and oapital work in progress which arestatcd at cost.

Currently, depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method at the retes gi'en in Note 5 to write off the costof operating fixed assets including the related exchanse differences and borrowing ccst over their expecte4 useful life.Depreciation on additions is charged trom the date when the assets is available for use and on deletions up ro the date when theassets is deleted.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. lvlajor renewals and improvements ar.,capitalized and the assets so replaced, ifany, are written off. Gains and losses on cisposal ofassets. ifany are included in theprofit and loss amount currently.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost le-ss accumulated amoftization and accurnulateil impairment losses. The depreciable amountofintangible asset is amortized over the estirnated useful life using the reducing balance rlethod at the rate stated in the relevant
note to the financiai statements.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores' spares and loose tools except items-in-transit, are valued at lower of moving average cost or net realizable value lessailowances for obsolete and slow moving items. Items-in-transit are valuecl at invoice price plus cth er charges incurred thereon.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realt ablevalue. Cost is determined according to the foli ovring basis:
Rarv mateiial - in hand FIFO basis

- in transit At cost accumulated to statement of financial positiorr dateWork-in-process Weighted average basis
Finished goods \Veighted average basis

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods represents annual average cost which consist of prime cost andappropriate manufacturing overheads.

4.2

4.3

4.4

48th Annual Report 2017-2018
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of business less estimated cost necessary' if

4.5

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

.*";;;;;;; incurred in order to make such sale'

Trade and olhsY lsssiYables

Traae debts and other receivables aie recognized at originai invoice .amou:t 
less provision t9r {luuful 

debts and other

receivables, if any. A nr"r,ra. i", aoubttul debts "J' 
;;;;;ables is ".,*,trn"i 

irrr.n r''"" is orje.ctive evidence that the

company rvili not be abre to corlect alr amounts *" #;il;1; the original ;;;";;;"i;ables' Bad Debrs are written off

when identified'

;;:ifilfl#il:[. recognized initiallv at fair value net of direcrlv attributable cost' i f anv'

Borrowings and borrowing costs 
:d. Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense

l"tru;r;:fi:.T[:1j:XXl]J[1'.H::!:l'"i::::?'iff#;$fi':[T ',il"' "" 
Jri'"lv at'lribu'lable 

'io 
the acquisi'1ion'

construction o, proau.,rorr'l;;;u.iu,-; ;r*i. s*r' u"*"*ing "ottt' 
itu"y' u" t-aituri"o as p art of the cost of that asset'

4.6

4.1

4.8 Provisions .,--^+:.,-.-L.rio^tion as a result ofpast event and it is probablelhat

::ilff;i:::i:JJ::l*il$"'.:x'ffi!,#*:T*[Jil,'.'ffi:H:Iiffi*.::Til;i':'xl';lff:ffitT]l*Xf'f
i'-n. u*n""t of obligation' Provision is revrewet

best estimate'

4.g Staff retirement benelits

rhe company operatcs approved * "ifo-*i::I'J'r',iH"Til'J;:TLXfit:";;:I',f[1":f.IJiI].-#::li:-ff:fi:
oi r.*itt as defined under the respectrve scn

basis of actuar'' *i"ii' ""i 
it tr"r*g"a to statement of proflt or loss' 

,rotarl hv estimating the amount of {'uture benefit that

Thc company,s net obligarion in rcspect of dcfinccl benefit pran is.carcuiated b, esrimating the arnounl or ,'urure beneht that

employees n"* "#o 
ii rn. current and rr,*;.;;, ;,;;ounting that ;;;;ii;;ductirft the fa ir value of arry ptan assets'

calculation of derrned benefit obligation is.performed annually by a qualified acruary using the pro!ectcil unit credit rnethod'

when the car.urutio-Jresults in a potential #i';;;;; a";p;v' in:T;;;;'u""ti' limitei to the present value or

economic benefits availabre in the form_ of ";;;*r;r;i;lu- liT ,t..pi". ", 
..Jrctions in tuture contribution to the plan' To

calculate tr,e prese,t'varue of economic u*"nl, .*.ideration i, giu.n,o iny"upprirutr" minimum f unding requirements'

Remeasurements of the net defined benefrt liability, which comprise. actuarial gains and t::ijl; ttH:In,;iftsiiii:

ffi,;lth:t"#* 
jt*HfHffi :1.-,1*riL:1:::itfi:i#T:1}'ffi 

'ff ::l;";#;;t:*yr"irl"
discount rut. ,rr.o to *"asure the defined o*Ji- "orori"r, 

u, rt. t.gini;;;;; ;*rat period to the then-net defined benefit

liability (assct). rakiirg inro accounr:lr::I;J;";;;'i.o"1"to ol'l'?''ti"i'ui']"'Jttl during the pe.iod as a result of

contriburions and ben-cfit pa)rnenrs. u., inr"r"li'expense and orher "-;;::r';;iri 
t" otn"to be"nefit plan is recognized in

;ffi" a.'n".* :;n. are changed or -when a plar is .r*",rllrll resurting change in benefit that relates to past service or

the gain or loss on curiailment is recognized im*ediat"ly in statement'ii;-?;;;;.r. The company recognizes gains and

losses on tr''" '"ttrt'*lii "i"-u"n*o 
0""1fit plut' when the settlement occurs'

4.10 Finance Leases

Assetssubjecttofinanceleaseareinitiauv.recognized.atthe.lower::fl:ffiil1#::ffi'ffi,11",'"".X:1'*"underthelease

*:ffi.#n;*:f::;T.;X- ffi::;",ffiiln riabilities asainst assets subject to rinance lease rhe

liabilities ".. 
.r"r-ru.J-"* current and t""r-"t J"ninding upon the timing of the payment

4\tn Annual Tott-zota
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Each lease paYlrent is allocated betrveen the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance
outstanding. The finance charges in the rental is charged to profit.

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the usefui life of the asset in line with normal depreciation method
adopted for assets owned by the Company. Depreciation is charged to statement ofprofit or loss.

4.11 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards .of ownership are retained
by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classihed as operating leases irrespective of whether
signiltcant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the statement ofprofit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period ofthe lease.

4.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized rvhen it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and
the amount ofrevenue and the associated cost incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and the"risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the customer;

Revenue from export ofgoods, ifany, is recognized at the time ofissuance ofbill oflading.

4,13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash with banks on current, saving and deposit accounts, short term running
finances and other shoft term liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and which are subject ti
insignificant risk ofchange in value.

4.14 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign cuffency transactions are recorded at the official exchange rate applicable at the transaction date. Morietary assets and
iiabilities are translated into rupees using official exehange rates applicable at the statement offinancial position date. All gains
and losses on settiement and transaction at year-end are recognized in the income statement.

4.15 Financialinstruments
' 

Al1 financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time rvhen the Company becomes a pafiy tothe conhactual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets and iiabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given
and received respectively. These linancial assets and liabiliiies are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost as
tile case ma;v be. A financial asset is de-recognized when the Company loses control of its contractual rights that comprise the
financial asset. A' financial liability is de-recognized when it is extinguished. Any gain or ioss on de-recognition ofthe financial
assets cr liabilities is taken 10 statement ofprolit or loss curuently. The Company recognizes the regular way purchase or sale of
irnancial assets u.sing settlement date accounting.

.1.16 Impairrnent

a. F inancial asscls

A tlnancial asset is considered to be impaircd ifobjective evidence indicates that one or more eyents had a negative effect on the
estimated tuture ca-sh llow of that asp,et. An impairmerrt loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calcuiated as a dilference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated fufure cash flows discounted at the
original ef{bctive interest rate. An impairment ioss in respect ofan available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to
its curreili ibir val*e. individually significant financial assets are tested for irirpairnient on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assilts arc assessed collectively in goups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

49th Annttai Repori 2017-201 I
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b. Non- financial assets

The carrying amount of the company,s assets are reviewed at each statement of rrnancial position date to detemine rvhether

rhere is any indication of i.puir-"nt. rr.u.',-lrrai.uiiorr, "*i.i, 
the asset's ;;;;;i; '*oo't 

is estimated in order to detetmine

the extent of the impairment loss, ,, ".r. 
,*"ril;;;i;.. i, .".ognir.d u, expense in the-stateme,t of profit or loss' An

impairment ,"r. * ."1.r..0;il1; the extent ,rr", ir," asset's carryin* ,*o* aott ,,o' exceed the carrying amount that would

havebeendetermined,netofdepreciationo'u,no.ti,ution,ifnoimpairmentlosshadbeenrecognized.

4.1? Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position' if the company

has a legally entbrceable right to setoff the ,."";;;;i;;ot"'* u''ta tn" t"*'"* itienis to settte either on a net basis or realize

;;; ;tt"; and settle the liabilitv simultaneouslv

4.18 Taxation

Current
provision of current tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation oI

income. The charge fo, .urrent tax is calculatJJ ,.rr.,g prevailing o^ *t., "r 
i"- rates expected to appty to the profit for the

year, if, enacted. Ta" ;; f;; c'unent 
lax "r*-i".rri", "djustrients, 

where- considered necessary, ro provision rbr tax made in

previous,.ut' u""t'-r-"'iJ u"tt'-""tt framed during the year for such years'

Deferred r. i :i:r-- 
-^+r.^.-t 

in resnect of all taxable temporary

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statemerlt of rrnancial position liability method in respect of all taxable temporar'

differences arising.from difterences u.*..n',rr"'.u,rying o*ornt "r 
*r"rl.irJuil,i.u in the financial statements and the

coresponding tax bases used in ,t. .o*p,rOil" "i 
tr-,"Uft p'ont Oti""td tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable

temporary difterences and deferred .ux assets ,r. ,..ogrrir.d to ,t. .*,.riit*i ir is probable that taxable prohts will be available

against which ,n" O-"Ur.,r. i.,opo.ury aiffe.en""s, ir.t *ed tu* to"tt u"J 
'u,. 

t'"dit' tun be utilized' Deferred tax assets are

reviewed at each reporling date and .. *.r;;;;'th. .*t.r,t ttrat it is nJ i""* ,r"o",e that the related tax benefit will be

;:m tax is calculated at the rates that are t'.f:1:1,:: 
:::Yr:::T 

period when the differences reverse' based on tax rates

that have been enacted. Defened tax assets "J'ir"oiint". 
u.. orrro ,r lrr.r" is a legaliy enforceable right to offset current tax

riabilities and assers, and they relate to ir.,"o,* tu* levied by the same io* uutrroa,f on the same taxable entity' or on different

tax entities, but they intend to settle currenr tax liab,ities and assets on u no buri. o' their tax assets and liabilities will be

realized simultaneouslY'

"' :::ilT::'iHTffi*s is incruded:.":iT.:ii.':;:':I";,?llflli'.:?i:i::'#ii:TTi.:L',?x#"fi;;1''
barance. s.purut.ry recognized goofw,l 

'.'l.r,"i """r"riy 
for impairment and ca'ried at cost less accumulated impairment

Hnh"#Til*:T::::'ffixJ*:::J''".;:;:"J'" "on'*g"'"lJH::fr1",#::i:,:l'.: ilTliJlT:x'Jl"ffi"
not meet the company,s expectations-th*;;; will be impaired. The impairment revierr.s performed by the company

contained u nr.b", of significant j*dg*.;;, u;..ti*ut.t incl;din;;e;e;e gtorvth',the ::::ttt 
ol ne* product launches'

patent expiry dates, prof,rtLargins, cash "o,,*,,io,, 
teminal values and discount rate' Changes in these assunrptions might lead

to a change * 
'n" 

t":*t* 'uit'-t 
oi intungible assets and goodwill'

4.20 Related PartY transactions

A1r transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conclucted at am's length at normal

commerciai rates on the same terms and conditiins as third puny nur"*.irons using valuation modes' as admissible' except i*

extremety.ur".ir.rr*rtunces where, ,*bj";;';;;;-"fp'o.,ut ""ot 
o"It"iil;"t' ;i; in the interest of the companv to do

a.zr 

siest"tement 
- ^. ^*^-^oma.t the existins business of manufacturing of bakery and other-food

UndertheLahoreHighCourtapprovedschemeofarrangement,theexistingbusinessofmanufacturing
products shall be ."r*J ", uv it.," *.rg.a-"o*;*l *'iu"' tnt ""'T 111il; 

;i;**'s Lin.rited' Subsequent to the balance

sheet date, u,ra *.rg.r-iulr'rr".o ru',",i*.u .rr.o.#,r"i1," i',W'r"',:[:;fiIto""i' the comparative amounts have been

:ffi:.Ti:;-ll ffJffi:L,""J"-;;;;;;.;;d with errect rrom Julv 01' 201s

@17-201s
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BUNNY,SLIMITED(FoRMERLYMOONLITE(PAK)LINIITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHEvT@

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwilt on acquisition

ERP Soflware

ERP Software

Cost
Balance as at JulY 01,2017

Additions during the Year

Disposals during the Year

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Balance as at JulY 01, 2016

Additions during the Year

Disposals during the Year

Balance as at iune 30,201'/

Anrortization

Balance as at JulY 01 ,201i

Charge for the Year

Amortization on DisPosals

Balance as at June 30' 2018

Balance as at JulY 01 , 2016

Charge for the Year

Amorlization on DisPosals

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Rate of amortization

Net book value as at June 30, 2018

Net book value as at June 30, 20i7

STOCK-IN.TRADE
Rarv materials

Packing materials

Work-in-Process

Finished goods

TRADE DEBTS. UNSECURED

Considered good

Considered doubtful

2018

Restated

2017

RuPeesNote

2.3

6.1

6.1

76,612,382
L28,265

76.80$,647'.

375,000

't6,672,382

160,331

76.832,713

Total

375,000

375.000

375,000

375.000__-------.--
375,000

_- 
-rzs.ooo 375Poo

214,669

32,066

2t4,669

32,A66

246.735

174,586

40,083

214,669

r28.265+

163,562,535

55,119,025
2,146,870

211,276,255

211.276.255

246,735

174,586

40"083

- too.:: t 150,33 I
__::2-

214,669

128.265

1 50,587,887

51,176,947
2,035.8i3

221,474,634

20.922. ,150 I 5. I 00.421

-7r Tirro 218.901,128

8.1

221.474.634
-->-

48th Annual 2017-2018
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mBUNNYS'LrM.'ED$xS euality ls Our Major lngredi-ntl

BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED)
NorEs ro rHE FTNANCTAL drarrnmNrs
FOR THE YEAR,ENDED JUNE 30,2018

t.048.148 907.q64
8s. rer,8o3 -l?$JsJ66

9'l No aggregate outstanding balance of advances, deposits and prepayments due fi-om related parties at the end of any monthduring the year, accordingly, no need to test the impairment.

Restated

Note 2018 2Ot7

from related parlies at ,n. ;;;;;;;:}.T"jil--;;;
8.1 No aggregate outstanding balance of trade debtors due

accordingly, no need to test the impairment.

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances to staff against salary.Unsecured
Mobilization and other advances
Bank guarantee margin
Prepaid expenses

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand

Cash at bank (current accounts)

ISSUED. SUBSCRTBEDAND PAID UP SIIARE CAPITAL
2018 2017

Number of shares

4,832,267
78,345,791

966,597

792,436
84,968,569

966,597

2 1,595,860

492,290,830

-

1 30,000,000
1 8,540,554

10

l1

Restated
2018 2017

Rupees

3,336,776 7,856,916

2018 2017
Rupees

i,686.874 s )to aa)
5.023.65 t t7.G-58

2,159,586

49,229,083

2,159,586 Ordinary shares of Rs
in cash.

l0l- each fully paid

49,229,083 Ordinary shares of Rs. l0/_ each issued to
the shareholders ofeconomic acquirer as
per the approved scheme of arrangement

2 1,595,860

492,290,830

1 30,000,000

i 30,000,000

51.388,66e ---tJ88r6r-
_ 513.886.690 513.886,690

:<'l1'l 
;:'H::rt:*"**lt:-:lhares 

and amount of share capital issued to the shareholders of economic acquirer pursuant tothe merger as detailed in note 2.3.

12 CAPITAL RESERVES

Capital maintenance reserve
This represents the excess offair value ofland, o'*ned by the econonric acquirer, over its cost. The reserve will be available

H"1l"T::ffi:'ffmongshareholders 
onlv on eventual olrp"*L 

"ii"rJ uii r,.n.. has bec.n classified as capitai reserve.

Nludassar Ehtisham & co' chartered Accountants computed valuation of Rs. 33.02 for each ordinary share of economicacquirer with a par value of Rs' 10 per share. Management of economic acquirer decided for a swap ratio of l:l for thepurposes of the merger' This resulted in to a per share premium of Rs. 23.02 that is <ieemJ a irurr. been recei-,-ed fromeconomic acquiree.

13 LONGTERMFINANCES-SECURED
Privately placed term finance certilicates (ppTFCs)
Principai

Capitalized markup

48th Annuai Report 2017-2015
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BUNNY'SLIMITED(FORMERLYMOONLITE(PAK)LTMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI8
Restated

2017
Note

Less:

- Convertedr re-scheduled as finance from Orix Leasing

- Converted/ re-scheduled as finance from Askari Bank Limited

- Converted re-scheduled as hnance from National Bank ofPakistan

- Recoverable from Koalman (P\'t') Ltd'

- On account payments against PPTFCs

Askari Bank Lirnited

Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited

Sarnba Bank Limited

Sy,ndicated Dirninishing Musharika faciiity

Pak Brunei Investtnent Con-tpan'v l-imitcd

Arvrval lVlodaraba Management Limited

Less: current portlon shor'vn rmtlcL curreirt lia'oilities

13.lThesePPTFCshal'ebeenissuedtothefbllor'vingfinar"rcialinstitutior.ts:

Orix Leasing Pakistan ['imited

National Bank of Pakistan

Askari Rank Limited

Atias Income Fund

Koalman (Pvt.) Limited - temporary parking

lnvest Capital Investment Bank Ltd'

Future minimum lease PaYment

Less: Unamortized financial cirarges

Present value of minimum lease payments

Less: Current portion sho'*n un<ler current iiibiiities

t3.2

2018

(4,170,000'

( 18,s00,000

(50,000,000)

73

(81,343,620)

34,1 ,500
229,t62,654

67.t96,934

1,996,752

521.250

17,1,583,331

87.291,669

261.875,000

Restated

2&17

RuPees

229.510.154 33 i,589,936

130.000.000

These pprFCs have bEen fully redeerned iruring the vear. Howevcr, the <lelisting ol thescs PPTFCs from cl)S is .nder

process.

13.2 This syndicated dirninishirrg muslrarika facilitl- has been sr,vaped witha'term tjnance from Sanrba Bank L,imited dlrring tlre

year. The term finance lacility carrie's mari.-,,p at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2'5oto' The plincipal is oa'vable ol monthllr

basis while 
'rarkup 

is pa.,-able o* quarterly basis r.r.ith the lasr install're,t pa-vable on September" 3"\' 2022' The faciiity is

secured against charges on fixed asseis olthe company'

|4LIABILITIESAGAINSTASSETSSTIBJECTToITINANCEI-EASB-SECURED

The amount of future minimum lease payments along with their prescnt ialue a*d the period during rvhich they fall due are

as. under:

75,100. lr I

o,7r1,246)
66,382,885

(28,081,121)

3E.301,764
4

28.10i.i |1
(4.660.319)

23,446,898

iE.600,477'I
14.846,421

:4

f-Al?oPooil
I r r s"soo.oooll

| 1:o,ooo,oool1

I r so.ooo,ooorl

I rzz,:.lo.oooll

r----I
2018

(5J.514.158r (-52-:18.0021
l

17 4.995,996 279.0"i 1,934

r---- - -lli
IIttti

4.170,000

30,000,000
1 8,500.000
2.120,000

5G,000,00{.}

25"210,0t)0

RuPees
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Quality ls Our Maior Ingredient!

BUNNY,S LNITED (FORIIERLY MOO|{LITE (pAK) LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS
i.OR TI{E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Note 20r8
Restated

2017

Payable rvithin one ;-ear
Payabie atier one year

Rupees

28.081,121 8,600,477
38,301.764 14,846,42t

? 75l S)C 7 7(1 i)O
i 0,66.1,45 1 10,25 i ,609
13.417.980 13,005,1 38

66,382.88s 23,446,898
l4.1TheConlpany,enteredintoleaseagreementswithfinancia1institutionstoacquire.ffiabilitiesunderthe1ease

agreemexis are pavable in equal monthiy installments and are subject to finance charges at the rates ranging from 6 months
KIBOR + 2.596 to 3.95o/o and22ot'o per annum (June 30. 2017 :6 months KIBOR + 2.5% to ,1.9-5026 and22otn per annurrr).
The lease liabilities are secured against security deposits, post dated cheques, personal guarantee of all the dirrctors of the
Companl, ard also secured against financed vehicles.

Note
2018

Restated

2077

Rupees

15 LONG TERM ADV.{NCES - UNSECURED
Against vehisles from contractors
From contractors against recovery of sales proceeds

16 DEFERREDLIABILITIES
Detbrred taxation

Sta ff' reriremenr benefirs - g.aruiry
16. r

16.2

I6.1 Del'erred taxation
Opeling dsferreri tax

Deferred tar ieversed

Deierred tax reversed

liability

to profit or loss

to oihff comprehensive incorne

164.799.914

23,856,226

1 88,656.140

1"11.269.370

i ,ji3s.45Al
| (e34.000)l

(.6,469.456)

17 t,269,370
1 8.1 56,838

189,426,208

154,134,982

16.697,595

436,793

I 7, 1 34.388

27

Closing delbrred tax liabilit,v 16. I . I
16.1.1 Closing deferred tax liability

Def'erred tax liability comprises oi:
Defu-rred tax liabiiities in respect of taxable temporary differences:

Accelerated tax depreciation

Liabilities against assets subject to tjnance lease

int,rngible assets

Delerred tax 3ssers in respect ofdeductibie tcmporary difibrences:
Unuscd tax losses I credits

Prol,ision lbr gratuiff

16.2 STAFF RETIREI\,TENT BENEFITS - GRATUITY
The latest actuarial r,aluation of grafuity,...,as carriecl out as at June
the reqi-rirements cf approved accoulrtiog standards - International
itli!$,r,,,q1

30, 20i 8 under thc projected unit credit mbthod as per
Accounting Standard 19, the detaiis oi'which are as

164.799,9t4

164,799,9t4

17 t,269,370

207,614,9t7

2,299,346

48,099

209,962.362

33,245,940

5,447,051

38,692,991

t71.269.370

192,25i.478

27.457,564

Annual Repori
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Quality Is Our Major lngredientl

BUNNY'S LIMITED €ORMERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

2018

Restated

2017
Note

The movement in defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning

Current service cost

Interest cost

Amount recognized in profit and loss

Benefits paid

Actuarial losses from change in financial assumptions - amount recognized in other

comprehensive income

Present value of defined benefit obligation - amount recognized in statement of
Iinancial position

16.2.5 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuations

Financial assumptions

Discount rate used for year end obligation

Expected rate of increase in salary

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality rate

16.2.6 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

Discount rate

Increase in future salaries

Rupees

15,441,614

(13,201,546)

1 45q 160

1t,473,430

t0.126.745

751 .330

fi,478,075
(6,2s0,64s)

1,455,978

____8,85 6 226_ __l 8, 1 56,83 8_

9.00%
. 6.00%

slrc (200i-05)

7.75%

4.75%

sl-rc (2001-05)

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the foliowing assumptions. The below information summarized

how the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have been increased/(decreased) as a result of
change in respective assumptions by 100 basis points.

Increase in Decrease rn

assumptions assumptions

21,649,453

26,557,253

2018

26,502,928

21,572,859

Restated

2017
Note

t7.t

17.2

Rupees

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade Creditors - unsecured

Accrued expenses

Workers'welfare fund

Workers' (profit) participation fund

Advances from debtors - unsecured

This does not include any amount payable to related party.

189,289,453

68.364,425

2,743,821

8"293,137

12,203,399

246,716,423

52,910,565

3,$1,A61
9,688,283

34.770,9t5

_2n,894234_ 347,787,248

t7.l

17.2 Workers' (profit) participation fund

Opening baiance

Allocation for the period

Less: Payment made during the period

9,688,283

8,293,t31
8,084, i 9 l

9,688.283

l'7,981,420

(9,688,283)

__82e3)\

11,772,474

(8,084,19r)

9,688,283

1 8, 1 56,838

48th Annual Report 2017-2018 g
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE (pAK) LTMTTED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

18 ACCRUEDMARK-UPONSECUREDLOANS
Long term finances and leases

Short term borrowings

2I SALES-NET
Gross sales

Less: sales tax

22 COSTOFSALES
Raw materials consumed
Opening Inventory
Purchases - net
Closing Inventory

Wages and salaries

Fuel and power
Repair and maintenance
Packing material consumed
Other indirect expenses

Insurance

Depreciation

Manufacturing cost

2018
Restated

2017Note

Note

Rupees

t 0.7 2e.e6s ______=li 0:l_
19 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Allied Bank Limited - secured 19. I 73.452.666 74,962,666
Bankislami pakistan Limited D.2 g6,000,000
Book overdraft l9.i 2.i54.g15 19.262.292-- tbtJo/,J41 ---- %.2AS5R

l9'l Running finance facility has been obtained fiom Allied Bank Ltd. against sanctioned limit of Rs. 100 million. (2017 : Rs.100 million)' It carries markup @ 3 months KIBOR + 2oA per annum (2017: 3 months KrBoR + 2%o per annum). It is
secured against first pari passu chatgel Hypothecation over assets of the company and personal guarantee of the directors.

l9'2 This murabahah finance facility has been obtained during the year against sanctioned limited of 100 million. This carriesmark up at the rate of respective KrBoR plus 4Yo. This facility is secured against ranking charge on present and future
current assets ofthe Company.

19.3 This represents book overdraft of Meezan Bank Limited and Bank Al Habib Limited.
20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20'l LetterofguaranteeamountingtoRs2.552 million(2017:Rs.2.552million)hasbeenissuedinfavorofSuiNorthernGas
Pipeline Limited. There are no other known contingencies as at balance sheet date.

20.2 There are no major commitments outstanding as at barance sheet date.

5,570,140

s,ts9,82s
958,490

1,517,568

92,925,20s
17,975,234

139,120,8t7
5,665,107

1,975,983

s4,1t3,s49

Restated
2018 2Ot7

Rupees

2,398,219,589 2,246,516,905
(83.999,423) (6s"435 686)

2.3t4.220.t66 2.181.081,219

fisos8?J8il
I r.ro+.:so.+os I

I t re:.soz.s:slJ
1,091.405,820

. 225.444,58822.1

22.2

4.2

L--T4.,:sr..:r:f
I r.oea.sso.as+ |I trso.ssz,ssztl

1,06s,719,292

199,969,6s4

1 ,646,244,203 1,577 ,464,841

4?th Annual Report 2017-2015
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BUNNY'S LrMrrED (FORI{ERLY MOONLITE (PAK) LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNf, 30,2018

Note

Work-in-process

Opening balance

Closing balance

Finished goods

Opening balance

Purchases

Closing balance

Cost of sales

22.1 These include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 4,393,834 (2017: Rs

,r)

2018

Resiated

2017

Rupees

2,035,873 1,518.924

(2,t46,870) (2,035,871)

(1 10,997)

15,100,421

(486.94e)

I 1,258,635

6,724,118

(20,922,750) (15,100,421)

(5,822,329) 2,882,332

Packing material consumed

Opening inventory

Purchases - net

Closing lnventory

Packing material corrsumed '

ADMINISTR,A.TIVE AND GENERAL

Directors' remuneration

Salaries and benefits

Printing and stationery

Traveling and conve.vancc

Telephone, postage and telegram

Fee and subscription

Vehicle running, maintenance and insurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Entertainment

Repair and maintenance

Charity and donation

Legal and professional

Auditors' remuneration

Newspaper and periodicals

Depreciation

Amortization of intangibie assets

M iscellaneous expenses

_J_,61031Wj_
2,',|33,820)

51.116,947

152,965,825

(5s,1 r9,02s)

_14eWJ4\_

43.411,896

4r,2i3.7 45

-1.,031,809

1,965,157

4,366,163

2,454,987

13,1A0,743

2,A71,961

r,9t2,297

8,673,929

1,296,456

3,692,035

19,053,630

500,000

446,043

12,742.248

32,066

2,s63,143

1.5',79,86A"224

'50,147.565

I 40, t 50,200

(sl,t7 5.947)

139,120,8 i7
,1

23.1

23.2

23.3

4.2

6

55,',55,625

2.496,1,09

6.627 3tA
4,03,{,82 i

14.981,3i9

12,834,418

7',76,8i6

2,507,903

1.28s,134

1,298,336

1,672340

2,36o,goo

1,92o,0oo
1q g)1

6,90.1,169

40.083

1,915,283

162,578,s08 122.894,472

23.r

23.2

Tlrese include staff retirement benefits arnounting to Rs. 5,340,8 61 (2017:R;.4,.962,261)

None of the directors or theil spouses have any interest in the donee.

48th Annual Report 201 7-201 I @



BUNNYS*LIMIrED
Quality ls Our Major lngredient!

BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONT ITE (PAK) LIMITED)
\OTES TO THE FII{ANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OT8

23.3 Auditorsr remuneration

Audit fee

Other professional charges
Out ofpocket charges

Total Auditors' remuneration
24 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTTON

Salaries and benefits
Vehicle rururing and maintenance
Discounts and salesmen commission
Advertisement

Sales promotion expenses
Depreciation

Note

2018

Aslam Malik & Co.

450,000

50,000

Restated

2017.

2017

Javed & co. llrazal 
Mehmood &

Co.

300,000
1,070,000

250,000

2018

Rupees

300,000

s00.000 ffitrdd,ifffi
24.1

5.2

44,038,966

I 30,587,887

94,694,727

4,372,766

8,224,04s

2,743,821

41,s92,330
101,796,971

91,079,798

5,5s6,710

5,785,403

3,641,061

24'l rhese include qtaff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 5,706,979 (20r7: Rs.
25 OTHEROPERATINGEXPENSES

Loss on disposal offixed assets
Wcrkers'welfare fund
Workers' profit participation fund

_ 2St.918391 -- r46J30.108

3,741,994)

- 74,820

8.293.t37 9.688.283
I 1.036.9s8 13.404.164

Restated

2017

26 FINANCE cosr RuPees

Mark up on:
-Long term finances
-Shorr terrn finances 38,3E6,590 24,231,551

Lease financial charges ':,,:?ri,,'rli ,i,,+t:^,,;3:

Bank charges and commission 5,155,515 2,0g4,340

27 T.LXATTON -- 
6j4rrs3 @

Current tax expense
Prior year's tax expense adjustment 23'051'138 26.357,659

Deferred tax expense (5,535,456) ,rr,Z3?,?:r:,

---lri -- a.-osr,n,27.lProvjsionforcurrentyeartaxationrepresentsminimumtaxundertheprovisionsofincome.u,o*-*,,:n.ffi
reconciliation oftax charge is not required' However, sufficient provision has been incorporated in ihese financial statements.

27'2 The company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax iaws to ensure that the suffrcientprovision for the purpose oftaxation is availabie' The oomparison ofestimated provision for taxation and actual tax assessedas per income tax return filed for previous years can be anaryzed,as follows:

48th Annuat neport iotT-zUi
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BUNNY',S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLITE eA$ lrvrtrnr)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHEYEA@

Note

2{117 ztJ16

2018

Restated

2Bt7

20r 5

28

Provision for Taxation

Tax assessed

EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC & DILUTED

Net profit after taxation

Weighteri average number of sharcs outstanding during the

year

Earning per share

CASH GENERATED FRO1U OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation and rvorkers' welfare fund

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Financial charges

Provision for workers' (proiit) participation fund

Provision ibr workers'weliare fund

Provision for gratuiry - nct

Amortizalion of intangible assets

(Gain) / Loss on disposal offixed assets

Operating pro{it before working capital changes

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

(Increase)l decrease in cunti-it asseisl

Stores, sPares and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Advances. deposits and piep:ynents

(Decrease)/ increase in traCe and other payables

Cash generated from oPerations

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Ca-"ir and bank balances

31 FINANCIAL RISK I}TANAGEMENT

3l.lFinancialinstrumentsbytategoryasperstatementoffinancialposition
Financial asseis

Securiiy dePosits

Tra<ie riebts

Short term aCvances

Other receivables

Cash and banlc balances

Rupees

26,351,659

26,357,659

Rupees

Numbers

Rupees

Rttpees

21,799,r'.84

2t,799,r84

138,154.115

5 I,388,669

Rupees

19,126,4CI7

t9,126,407

t3'1,283,990

5 i,388,669

29

2.67

155,6i9,797 179,3'73,269

158,206,411

3 13,886,2 l4 305,054" I 87

(2.360,984)

(8,1 89,679)
(t9,276,364

(3,243,214

(135,833.1 1s

03J39.220t (168.993.rss)

240-546.994 136, I 50,83 I

17,{}67,358

5.023,6s 1 17.06ru58

30

6,602,138

211,276,255
4,832,267

2,011,',l45

_ 5,023,651

5"522.668

221.474.634
792,436

1.874,561

17,067,358

229.749.056 246,73t '657

69,0u0,084 |

61,5,19,653 I

8,293.13',]

2,i43.ill
15.411,671

32.066
(854.018)

61,535,613

39,222.,q83

9,688,283

3,641.061

11,,178.075

4C.083

74,820

i25,680,9i 7

1,086,708

(22,850,052)

10.198,379

2,M2,763
(6441,01e).
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BTINNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONTITE (PAK) LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Note
2018

Restated

20ti
Rupees

279"O71,934

14,846,421
74,962,666
t9,262"292
2,476,058

34 r-,787,248

667.129,5A0 738,406,619

2,ss i ,480

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk itcluding capital risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market

risk. The objective of financial risk management is to minimize potential adverse effects on the fmancial performance of the

Company. The Company finances its operation through equity, borrowings and managemeilt of working capital with a view
to maintain reasonable mix between the various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transtbr a liability in an orderly transaction in the

principal .rnarket at the measurement date under current marker conditions regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

As at the reporillrg date. fair values of all linanciai instruments are consiclered to approximate their carrying amounts.

Further, there are no fair value estimaticn uncertainties.

Methods of determining fair values
Fair values of financial instruments for which prices are available from ihe active itiarket are measured by reference to those

market prices. The fai-r value t-;f financial assets (other than ilrvestments) and liabiiities with no active market are derernrined

in accordance with generaliy accepied pricing models based cn discounted cash flou'analysis based on itputs from other than

observable market.

DiscounUinterest rates used for determining fair values

The interest rates used to discount estirnated cash flou,s, when applicabie, are based on the goveffiment yield curv'e as at the

reporting date plus an adequate credit spread,

Fair value hierarchy
The company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance ofthe inputs used

in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level I Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included u'ithin Levei 1 that are obsen able for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived fromprices)
Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liabiiity that are not based on observabie rnarket data (i.e., unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy offinancial assets measured at fair value is as follows:

TOTAL
2018

Level 1 li Level 2 U Level 3
Arnount in rupees

tr'inancial liabilities

Long te'rm'loans and finances - secured

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Short term bank borrowings
Book overdraft - unsecured

&'[ark-up accrued on secureti loans

Trade and other payables

Oflbalance sheet items

Letter of guarantees

Securiry deposits

Trade debts

Short term advances

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

f i4,995,996
38,30r.764

t59,452,666
2,i54"875

1o,729,965
289,89t4,234

480551

6,602,138
211,276,255

4,832,267.

2,014,745
5,A23,65'

6,602,138
211,276,255

4,832,267
2,014,745
5,{123,651

_____22eJ_4e&55_
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2018 2D1',)
Note

RuPees

TOTAL

2017 Restated

L.r.t I II- Lwel2 ll Level3

Amount in ruPees

Security deposits

Trade debts

Short term advances

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

5,522,668

221,474,634

792,436

7,874,561

1',7,067,358

5,522,668

221,474,634

792,436

7,8'74,561

17,067,358

246:731,651

31.2 Credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties fail completely to

perform as contracted. The company believes that it is not expose to major concentration of credit risk. To manage exposure

to credit risk, Company applies credit limits and deal with credit worthy parties. Export debtors are secured by means of

Ietter of credits.

246.731,657

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit cxposure, as specihed below;

2018

Restated

2011

RuPees

Security deposits

Trade debts

Short term advances

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

No provision has been made against trade debts as these are considered good.

5.023.651 17,067,358

229.749.056 246.73t.657

6,602,138

211,276,255

4,832,267

2,014,'145

5,522,668

221,474,$4
792"436

1,814,561

31.3 LiquiditY risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet it's cornmitments associated with

financial instruments. The Company manages its liquidity risk exposure by having diversified funding sources and assets are

managed with liquidity in mind. To ensure adequate liquidity, the maturily profile is monitored on continuous basis'

31.4 Market risk
Market risk means that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumertt will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices such as, foreigr exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk

exposures wlttrin acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Market risk comprises of tkee tlpes of risk foreign

exchange or currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk associated with the Company's business activities

are discussed as under:
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BUNNY'S LIMITED (FORMERLY MOONLTTE (PAK) LI},IITED)
NOTES TO THf, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note
20r8

Restated

20ti
Rupees

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rates. The currency risk arises mainly from future commercia'l transaction or receivables and payables that

exist due to transactions in foreign c,,rrericies. The Company is exposed the currency tisk primarily with respect to US dollar

cur:rently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure restricted to amount receivable from foreign debtors. The Company

uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge its lbreign curency risk, when considered appropriate.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that value of tinancial instrument or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate due

to changes in interest rates. The Company manages the mismatches through risk management strategies where significant

changes in gap position can be adjusted. The company holds various variable rate financial instruments the detail of rvhich is

as follows:

2018

Restated

2017

Rupees

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Loan from various commercial banks

Finance lease liabiliry
Short term borrowings

229,510,154

66,382,885

33 1,589,936"

23,446,898

162,20 ,1,541 94,224,958

_ls 8, i 00,5 8q_ ____!4e 26t i n_
Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The company does not account for any fxed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, therefore,

a change in interest iates at the statement of financial position w-ould not affect profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
If KIBOR had been 1% higher / lower with all the variables held constant, the impact on profit before tax for the year would

have been higher / lower by 4.492 miilion (2017: 4.575 miilion).

Price risk
Price risk represents the risk that fair value of hnancial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in the market prices,

whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factor affecting all

or similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not expose to equity price risk since the Company has

not made any investment in quoted equity securities at the balance sheet date.

31.5 Carr"ving value of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair vaiues. Fair value is the amount l'or
'w"hich an asset could be exchanged, or a liabiliry settled, between knowledgeabie, willing parties in an arm's length

transaction. If the transaction is not based on market terms, or if a market price canlot be readily determined, then an

estimate of future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the current market interest rate for a similar financial

instrument, is used to approximate the fair t alue.

32 CAPITALRISKMANAGEMENT
The Company's objective when managing capital is to safe guard its ability to continue as a.going concern so that it can

. continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stake hoiders and to maintain strong capital base to

support the development ofits business.

The Company rulnages its capital stlxcture in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the

underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may adjust amount of dividend paid to

shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

48th Annual Report 2017-201 I @
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33 REMUNERATToN oF DIRECTORS, cHIEF ExECUrrvn ANo EXECUTIvES

2018

Chief
['.xecrrfivce

Director Executives

Medical allowance
Bonus

No. of persons

35 NUMBEROFEMPLOYEES

Average number of employees during the year

This includes 513 (2017: 50 I ) number of factory employees.

Total number of employees at year end

2017

Chief
Executivce

Director * Executives

Managerial remuneration 10,452,790 33,019'106 19'659'360

Housing

10"452.790 33,019,106 19'659;360 16,188,q00

l0 49

33.f The chiefexecutive and directors are provided rvith Company maintained cars in accordance with their terms ofemployment.

33.2 NomeetingieehasbeenpaidtoanydirectoroftheCompanyduringtheyear(June30,2017:Nil).

* Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition ofexecutives as per Companies Act, 2017.

34 TRANSACTION WITH ASSOCIAI'ED UNDERTAKINGS
The related parties comprise associated undertakings, other related companies and key management personnel. The Company in the

normal course of business caried out transactions with related parties. Detail of transactions with key management personnel are

disclosed in Note 33. There are no other significant related party transactions-

2018 2017

Number of Employees

665 65s

652 691

This includes 510 (2017: 507) number offactory employees

36 PRODUCTIONCAPACITY
2018 2018 201'7 2017

Maximum Actual Maximum Actual

Capacity Production Capacity Production

All units in Metric Tons

- Bakery Division 13,500 10,965 13,500 10,625

- Snacks Division 1,800 455 1,800 4i0

36.1 It is difficult to describe precisely the pro<luction capacity in bakery industry since similar equipment are being used for multiple

products and each product involves different processing time and technique.

36.2 Actual production in snacks division is lesser due to lower demand.

37 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no other significant events after the reporting period which may require adjustment of and/or disclosure in these financial

statements.

38 DATE OF AUTHOR.IZATION FOR ISSUE
- These financial statemenrs Lave bcen authorized for issue by the board of directors.of the Company on @@(!fu!@!.

39 GENERAL
- The figures have been rounded offto the nearest rupee.

- Corresponding figures have been re-classified / re-arranged for the purpose of comparison and better presentation.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

16,188,000
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MOOI{LITE (PAK) LTD.

Pattern Of Share Holding - Form 'r34rr

Share Holders Statistics As At June 30, 2018

Number of
Shareholders

Shareholdings
Total

Shares Held

1968

185

15

18

1

2

1_

2

4

1

t
1

7

3

2

7

\
1

1

7

7

L

3

3

4a

7

1

t

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

Shareholding From

1

101

501

1001

5001

10001

15001

20001

30001

45001

55001

115001

120001

125001

130001

14s001

185001

230001

235001

u750at

1965001

2050001

2450001

2950001

4895001

4920001

5355001

12305001

100

500

1000

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

35000

50000

60000

120000

125000

130000

135000

1s0000

190000

235000

240000

1480000

1970000

2055000

246s000

2955000

4900000

4925000

s360000

-12310000

59,374

36,772

77,767

32,627

9,500

20,863

71 ,325

45,000

727,242

48,500

58,846

715,477

123,793

381,288

263,393

146,437

189,829

234,318

237,247

1.,476,871

1,969,163

2,051,150

7,384,363

9,961,235

4,900,000

4,g22,gog

5,355,122

72,307,27'.J.

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

To

2222 51,388,569
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Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

Mr. Omer Shafiq ChaudhrY

Mr. Yunus Shafiq ChaudhrY

Mrs. Saadia Omer

Miss Mahnoor ChaudhrY

Mr. Haroon Shafiq ChaudhrY

Ms.AmiraHaroon-SpouseofHaroonshafiqChaudhrl

Mr. Muhammad Rafi Uz Zaman Awan

Mr. SYed Muhammad Adnan Raza Naqvi

Mr. Rehan Mobin

Associate Companies, Undertakings and related parties

NlT and ICP

Banks, Development Finance lnstitutions' Non-Banking

Finance lnstitutions

lnsurance ComPanies

Modarabas and Mutual Fund

Others

General Public

24,112,25O

72,307,771

2,461,454

2,461,454

4,922,908

2,500

1,969,163

2,500

2,500

2,500

LLs,477

10,335,524

2,051,150

tL,294

L4,742,974

a.22

20.11

3.99

0"02

28.59

Total

Shareholders Holding LO% or More ln The Company

Pak Brunei lnvestment Company Limited

51,388,669 100'00

Number of Shares %

5,356,122

12,307,271

10.42

23.95

lOmer 
Shaflq ChaudhrY

4sth An n u at ae Porrfri-zo t a

4

5

6

8

7

2

3
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VWe
member/members of Bunny's Limited and holder of : : shares as'per Registered
FoIib/CDC Investor Apcqun_t _l$q-icDg_-Sub-Aqc_sul}]L Na # do hereby appoint

of who is also member of the Company vide
RegisteredFolio /CDC lnv
# as m1y'our Proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 28 November, 2018 at 12:00 a.m. at ,
Lahore and at any adjournment thereof.

As lvitness my hand this __=-- day of

Witness's Signaturc
Name:
Address:

CNIC #
Affx Revenue

Stamp of Rs. 5/-

Witness's Signature
Name:
Address:

CNIC #

of

2018.

Date:

Place:Lahore ,CNiC+ , i , : i , ; i , , :

Note:
1. The Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting.
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